



El Camino Real Charter High School

Minutes

Board Meeting

Date and Time

Wednesday January 20, 2016 at 5:00 PM

Location

El Camino Real CHS, Library, 5440 Valley Circle Blvd, Woodland Hills, CA 91367

Directors Present

Dennis Thompson, Jackie Keene, Jonathan Wasser, Larry Rubin, Obie Slamon, Odus Caldwell, Peter Vastenhold

Directors Absent

None

Directors who left before the meeting adjourned

Jackie Keene

Guests Present

Angel Lerma, Barbara Stanoff, Cameron Maury, Carlos Monroy, Chang Patel, David Valenzuela, Dean Sodek, Eric Wilson, Fernando Delgado, Gail Turner-Graham, Howard Spike, Janelle Ruley, Kyna Collins, Lisa DeRubertis, Lisa Ring, Marlene Widauer, Marshall Mayotte, Melanie Horton, Regina Goad, Richard Scheinberg, Shelley Marshall, Susan Niven, Terri Keas

I. Opening Items

- A. Record Attendance and Guests
- B. Call the Meeting to Order

Jonathan Wasser called a meeting of the board of directors of El Camino Real Charter High School to order on Wednesday Jan 20, 2016 at 5:04 PM.

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Teacher / Student Presentation

No student/teacher presentation.

E. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Items and Agenda Items

ECR parent Marlene Widawer asked how the Board notifies the public of special Board meetings and asked for access to documents to be discussed at meetings prior to the meetings. She also requested that more detail describing the nature of items to be discussed be added to the Agendas.

ECR teacher Shelley Marshall thanked the Board for voting for the salary increases and thanked the Board members for their volunteer services on behalf of the school. She thanked Dave and Marshall for their countless hours of hard work and dedication and commitment to the betterment of, and to ensure the future of, ECR. She encouraged the Board to approve their proposed salary increases .

ECR Biology teacher Gail Turner-Graham thanked the Board the for their volunteering efforts. She also thanked the Board for ratifying the recent salary increases. She also stated that their leadership and fiscal responsibility made the raises for the teachers possible and requested that the Board approve their salary increases.

ECR Science teacher and Humanitas Coordinator Dean Sodek thanked the Board for ratifying the teachers' increases and for approving and resolving the salary portion of the contract while remaining negotiations continue. He also voiced his support for the "me too" clause, to include salary increases for all groups of ECR employees who work to make ECR the high performing school it is. He also thanked all those responsible for taking the extra steps of surveying the teachers and individually tailoring the distribution of checks so that each teacher could decide if they wanted to receive their checks in December or January.

F. Committee and Board Updates

No Committee updates.

II. Consent

A. Review and Approve December Regular Board Meeting Minutes

Larry Rubin made a motion to approve Items A - E, (Minutes from the Board Meeting on 12-09-15, Minutes from the Special Board Meeting on 12-17-15, School Climate Bill of Rights, Local School Wellness Policy and the 2015-16 LAUSD Compliance Monitoring Certification). Board Meeting on 12-09-15.

Dennis Thompson seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Review and Approve December Special Board Meeting Minutes

The vote for approval was included in the Motion and Vote in Item A above.

C. Review and Approve School Climate Bill of Rights

The vote for approval was included in the Motion and Vote in Item A above.

D. Review and Approve Local School Wellness Policy

The vote for approval was included in the Motion and Vote in Item A above.

E. Review and Approve 2015-16 LAUSD Compliance Monitoring Certification

The vote for approval was included in the Motion and Vote in Item A above.

F. Review and Approve November Check Register

Obie Slamon made a motion to Review and approve the November check register. Jackie Keene seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

III. Governance

A. Board Member Vacancy

Three Board member terms (two Teacher Representatives and one Community Representative) will end June 30th (Obie Slamon, Peter Vastenhold and Odus Caldwell). Attorney Janelle Raney reviewed the rules and procedures to elect Board Members. Each term is three years and Board members can serve two consecutive terms. The Board discussed waiting until May to give the teachers time to find candidates to fill the teacher vacancies. The teacher positions can be filled with teachers from other schools or retired ECR teachers, but cannot be filled by currently active ECR teachers, employees of ECR or anyone compensated by ECR, but the positions don't have to be filled by teachers. According to the Bylaws, ECR teachers can vote on filling teacher vacancies. Parents of currently enrolled students also cannot serve on the Board.

B. Form and Approve an Audit Committee for the 2015/16 Annual Audit

Obie Slamon made a motion to form an audit committee for the 2015-16 audit, consisting of Treasurer Jackie Keene, Larry Rubin and Obie Slamon.

Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

C. Update: Form 700, Statement of Economic Interests form will be due soon

Board members need to update their Form 700's and get them to Marshall by the middle of March so he can get them to LAUSD by the due date of April 1st.

IV. School and Policies

A. Discuss and Vote for Creation of Committees Draft

Dennis Thompson made a motion to approve finalizing the Committees draft.

Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Review and Approve the 2014-15 School Accountability Report Card

Peter Vastenhold made a motion to approve the 2014-15 School Accountability Report Card.

Dennis Thompson seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

C. Update: Educator Effectiveness and Local Control Accountability Plan

Marshall updated the Board that ECR has been working with NPO Solutions and CEP, basic data consultants for schools. Eric Wilson will redraft, oversee and re-write the LCAP. He also stated that they are now forming committees for Educator Effectiveness. ECR received a \$228,000.00 allocation to fund the LCAP and Educator Effectiveness plan.

D. Update: Security / Campus Aides

Marshall reported that ECR will be hiring two new part-time Security Campus Aides who will work less than 30 hours per week to help cover the front doors and to cover when Campus Aides are late or ill.and will also be trained to back up the Copy Center in the afternoons. The Board also discussed additional safety and security training for staff.

E. Update: Executive Director

No update - the Executive Director was unable to attend the meeting.

V. Financial

A. Review and Approve Naerok contract for maintenance and construction

Approving the maintenance and construction with Naerok was tabled until the next Board meeting after the Board members have had the opportunity to more fully review the RFP, Naerok and the contract.

B. Approve Eric Wilson as an additional purchase authorizer

Jackie Keene left.

The Board unanimously voted to table the vote until next month's meeting when they will vote to add an administrator as a third purchase authorizer.

C.

Update: Governor's Budget

Marshall updated the Board on the Governor's Budget and the impact the funding will have on ECR.

D. Update: Highlander K-8 STEM School

Marshall explained the plan of the financial benefit that Highlander would bring to ECR. Melanie Horton informed the Board that instead of the LAUSD Board voting to approve ECR's Charter petition for the Highlander site, at the last minute LAUSD Board member Scott Schmerelson (who represents our area) proposed a magnet for performing arts, grades 6th - 14th working with Hale Middle School and Pierce College at Highlander. Instead on voting on the Charter petition, the LAUSD Board asked Mr. Schmerelson to provide a more detailed plan and a budget at their next Board meeting.

E. Update: 7401 Shoup - Independent Study

Marshall stated that ECR submitted a Material Revision in November to LAUSD for 300 students for Independent Study (at the new Shoup site) and the LAUSD Board bumped the vote to their March meeting.

F. Update: Financial Effect of Pay Increases

Marshall reviewed the financial effects of the salary increases on ECR's budget.

G. Update: ECR Budget

Marshall warned the Board of the challenges to ECR's budget going forward. CalPERS and CalSTRS will be going up, LCFF funding will be slowing down, minimum wage will be increasing, and ECR's slow attrition all combine to make savings in the future a challenge and spending on programs will have to be carefully evaluated.

H. Update: Net Reserve Target

Marshall stated that we have a Net Reserve to fund future liabilities, such as Retiree benefits (estimated at \$46.6 MM), improve facilities, increasing health care costs and ECR needs to put funds aside to cover such liabilities.

I. Update: Fiscal Transition

Marshall stated that LAUSD is requiring changes in our fiscal procedures. ECR's new ERP system is still being tweaked which will add layers of accountability to protect ECR and ECR employees. Two new accounting assistants will be hired and the payroll will be processed by a third party and an accounting consultant team is looking at ECR's internal controls to confirm that ECR is financially compliant. This will give ECR a fourth and fifth layer of audit and finance protection.

J. Review and Approve Updated Classified Salary Table

Obie Slamon made a motion to review and approve the updated Classified Salary table. Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

K. Review and Approve the Executive Director Salary Table

Obie Slamon made a motion to review and approve the Executive Director Salary Table. Odus Caldwell seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

L. Review and Approve the Chief Business Officer Salary Table

Dennis Thompson made a motion to review and approve an 8% increase for CBO Marshall Mayotte instead of the recommended 5%.

Peter Vastenhold seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** to approve the motion.

Roll Call

Jackie Keene Absent
Peter Vastenhold Aye
Jonathan Wasser Aye
Odus Caldwell Aye
Obie Slamon Abstain
Dennis Thompson Aye
Larry Rubin Aye

VI. Other Business

A. Future Agenda Items

Items to be added to future agenda include the formation of committees, how to secure future Board members, address security.

B. Closed Session - Public Employee Discipline / Dismissal / Release

VII. Closing Items

A. Adjourn Meeting

Obie Slamon made a motion to adjourn the meeting into Closed Session to discuss a Personnel issue.

Larry Rubin seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 7:35 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Terri Keas